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on Complainant's Exhibit 54, I believe it is. On

‘that exhibit-- On Exhibit. 54, could you please mark

with a black marker the place where the discharge-is
emanating over the terrace.

A, Sure. It's coming out of the--~approximately
the middle of the terrace right here, flowing thfough
the cornfield and entering the stream approximately
here. (Witness marks on exhibit.)
| 0. Please let the reéoxd reflect M;. Prier has
marked two marks on Complainant's Exhibit 54.

Mr. Prier, would you pleasé mark a "D" and a

"T" next to the terrace for discharge terrace.

A. (Witness marks on- exhibit.)

THE'ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE : Is this a‘new
exhibit numb@r,'counsel? |

MR. BREEDLOVE: Yes, Your Qonor.

THE ADMINISTRAfiVE LAW-JUDGE: You probably
want to ask him‘fiist what this i1s since it's--we
den't have that on the record.. I know we've seen it
before, bﬁt you still want to say, "Do you recognize
this,‘what it Ls?"

MR. BREEDLOVE: I'1l lay a foundation;'Your
Henor. Thank you.

BY MR. BREEDLOVE:

Q. Mr. Prier, Complainant's Exhibit 54 is in
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front of you. Please identify Complainaﬂt's Exhibit
54, |

A, This is an aerial photo ofﬂfhe Lowell.Vos
feedlot.

Q. Now, Mr. Prier, would you please mark with a

"DP" for discharge point at the place where it was
running into the unnamed tributary.

A. (Witness marks cn exhibit.)

Q. Thank you. Now,-Mr. Prier, did you éample
any discharges from the facility that day?

A. Yés, we collected samples.

Q. Did you sample it at the point where it was

emanating from the terrace?

A, No.
Q.  Why did you not do that?
A. We were there on an educational trip to

inform Mr. Vos of what he needed to do to bring his

feedlot into compliance. We were not building an

.enforcement case during that visit.

0. To clarify for the record, Mr. Prier, when
you say_"we," who else was at the inspection with
you?

A, Kén Hessenius,.the environmental supervisor

‘at that time, and Rick Martens from field office one

in Manchester. His duties were going to be
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thousand animal units.

0. Those are both empleoyees of the lowa
Department of Natural Resources?

A. Yes.

0. Mr. Prier, could you please id@ntify on.

Complainant's Exhibit 54 the location that you

891

sampled--

A. Yes.

0.  --the unnamed tributary.

A. Yes, approkimately'her@. (Witness marks on
exhibit.)

Q. First, Mr. Prier, why did yvou sample so far
éway from the discharge poilnt?

A. Typically when we take é‘downstr@am sampie
we look for the easiest pdiht to take a sample, and
Ken was trying to educate Rick and I on how to take
the samples when we see them from fe@dlofs and
familiarize ourselves with what we would typically.'
seéjcoming from a feedlot.

Q. So.just to reiterate, you were not looking

to build a case at this point?
A. No.
Q. Where would you have sampled if you were

trying to build a case?
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A, If we were there on an enforcement case we
would typically sample upstream of the facility, if
we could, where the facility was discharging and then
somewhere downstream of the facility. |

0. - Okay. Thank you,.Mr. Prier. You can have a
seat . Thaﬁk you.

Mr. Pri@r,.what were your sample results?
What did vou éample for?

A That day we sampled for ammonia and pH. And
the ammonia field.resﬁlt was 3 milligrams‘per liter
and the pH was 7.4.

Q. /Mr..Prier, is that a particularly high
ammonia content?

A. Not really. Wé can find a background level
on Iowa streams‘anywhere from half a milligram per
liter to.one part per-~milligram pei liter any time

of the vear.

Q.. How many field sampies would you say you've
taken? |

A. Hundreds.

Q. Now, based on the results of this field test

you did, would you say that that three parts per
liter is higher than background level?
AL Yes.

o. Now, you also looked at pH. What was the pH
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again?
A. The pH was 7.4.
Q. Now, does that--that pH reading, does that

tell you anything?

i Typically from an open feedlot when-ménure
is entering a stream, the pH level will be lowered
from a normal background ievel of around 8‘units.

0. Sé based on the inspections that you
perforMed; what do vou think is the most likely
source of this elevated ammonia level? |

A. Manure 1is thé most likely source.

Q. Mr. Prier, duringlyour investigation of the
facility--I should éay during your on-site

assessment, your educatioconal visit_at this point, did

you observe any solid settling structures at the

facility?

A. Not as defined in the Iowa Administrative
Code.

0. | How would that be defined?

A. -That is defined by slowing effluent and

typically using a structure to slow that effluent to

a half a foot per second. The Iowa Code also says
that if topography will do it, then you can use
topography.

Q.  ‘During this assessment, did you identify any
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topography that would.meet the requirements of,a‘
settling structure according to the Iowa Code?

A. No.

Q. During.your assessment, did you identify
anything that would serve as a runoff control basin
at the facility?

A. No.

Q. During tﬁis assessment, did you find any
peints around the facility that led‘you to the

conclusion that discharge would be occurring from

them?
A. Can you repeat that one, please.
Q. Did'you identify any points of dischargé

from the facility?

A. Yes.
Q. And where were those?
A. They were out the south side, and then the

northeast'cornér it would flow across the road and
back down around through to the same unnamed
tributary.

'MR. BREEDLOVE: May I approach again, Your

Honor?

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.
BY MR. BREEDLOVE:

0. . Mr. Prier, could I ask you to come around to
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the light pro.

A. Sure.

Q. Piease mark the points at‘Mr. vos' facility
whereryou idenfified runoff with discharge.

A.. (W;tness marks on @xhibit;) This would be
the south area that it would discﬂarge, and then the
northeast.area would be across here wheré it would
continue flowing down through the facility--where a
facility used to be and into the sam@ unnaned
tributarf.

Q. Now, with your pen could you please note the

north disdharge point as just that north discharge.

A. This area here. (Witneés marks on exhibit.)

Q. Just draw a lihe off from it and identify
it.

A. Okay. (Witnéss_marké on exhibit.)

Q. Would you.wxite "discharge point," please.

A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)

Q. “And then at ﬁhe southern discharge poinf}

similarly, could you please put "south discharge

point.
- A. Sure. (Witness marks on exhibit.)
Q. Thank you, Mr. Prier.
Mr. Prier, could I focus your attention
on--one moment, please. Could I focus your attention
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on Coﬁplainant‘s,Exhibi@ 16.

A Yes.

Q. Could you please identify Complainant's
Exbibif 16 for the record.

A. That is the on-site open cattle feedlot
inspection for Lowell Vos that was dated July 2,

2003.

Q. Now, did you find that the in-house
assessment was accurate in regard to the medium
priority'categorj?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, I note in the--in the central paragraph
on the first page of that exhibit you note a number
of details regarding the facility. Could you
summarize what those details are.

A, Tﬁe details were basically the wvisual
observation that we saw at the facility,that day and
are telliné you where thejdischarge points are and
what we saw. |

0. Now, did Mr. Vos ever contact you to contest
any bf these findings?

A No.

Q. Eurther-on in that letter, what was the
other purpose.that this letter served?

A. "The other purpose was as a follow-up to our
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visit, and it established-a time line when an

engineer had to be submitted to the DNR, and that was

‘on August 22, 2003. And i1t also established a

Februéry 20, 2004, submittal date for a plén of

action that was regquired for all feedlots in this

program.
Q. Okay.
A.  And that plan of action included a ccmpleted

operation permit application, a preliminary
conceptual design of the needed manure control

structures, and it also established a compliance

"schedule that was to state when the final engineering

designs and construction permit applications were to

be submitted and the dates for initiation of

.construction and completion of construction.

0. Now, Mr. Prier, the August 22, 2003, date
and the February 20, 2004, are those deadlineé that
were insfituted:pursuant fo-the Iowa Plan?

A.-. Yes.

Q. Did each facility vyou did an on-site
assessment at, did they include the same time lines?

A. Yes; the Iowa Plan héd established 45 days
to retain an engineef and 6 months to eétablish a
plan of action.

Q. So upon their submission of a plan of
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action, 1s that the timé thét the facility owner
would determine the appropriate schedule at that
point for completion of controls?

Ao Yes.

Q. At that time IDNR would then adopt their
schedule if it was appropriate?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Prier, I asked you to turn to
Complainant's Exhibit 17. Please identify
Complainant's Exhibit 17 for the record.

A. This was a failure to submit regquested
information letter that was aléo a notice of

viclation to Mr. Lowell Vos dated February 23, 2004. -

0. Did you issue this notice of violation?
A; Yes.

0. What was the violation noted?

A. The violation was he had failed to submit

the required'information by the August .22, 2003,
deadline and the February 20, 2004, deadline.
Q. So Mr. Vos had failed to submit his

engineer's name at that point?

A, Yes.
Q. And he had also failed to submit the plan of
action?

A.  Yes.
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0. = So at this point in time was he
approximately six months late in submitting the
engineer's plan?

A. That would be correct.

Q. And how Iong late was he in submitting the
élan of action?

A. The plah of action was submitted on
approximately April 6th.

Q. So at this point in time how late was the
plan of action?

| A. At least six months.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Six months?

MR. BREEDLOVE: I don't thiﬁk'that?s
correct..

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUﬁGE: You can’'t
téstify. But maybe what you can do is you can bring
him back to his previous letter, have him note what
that date was there, then bring him baék to the

certified letter, have him compare the date and then

maybe he'll want to come up with a different

calculation, maybe.
MR.’BREEDLOVE: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. BREEDLOVE: | |
G. Mr. Prier, please stép back for a moment and

look at Complainant's Exhibit 16, Page 2.
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AL Okay.

Q. -What was the date whereby Mr. Vos was to
submit his plan of action?

A. February 20, 2004.

Q. And when was Complainant's Exhiﬁif 17 sent
Gﬁt Tto Mr, Vos?

A. Thaﬁ was February 23, 2004.'

Q. So at this point in time how late was
Mr. Vos with his plan of action?

A. Three days.

0. So is it a fair assessment that Mr. Vbs was
piovided prompt notification from IDNR when he hadn't
met thait reguirement?

A, f@s.

Q. Now, on the second page of Complainant's
Exhibit 17,‘the last séntence, it sgates if the;e'slr
any questions for Mr. Vos to contact you. Did he
ever call yourin regard to the regquirements?

A. : Not that I rgmember.

Q. Mr. Prier, 1if you could jump ahead to
Complainant's Exhibit 19. Could you please identify
that for the record. | |

A. This ié.a failure to submit a compléte plan
of action to Lowell Vos on April 27, 2004.

Q. And why was this notification issued?
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A. We had not recelved a complete plan of
action as of that date.

Q. So could you piea3@ reference Complainant's
Exhibit 18.

A.  Yes. Exhibit 18 was a letter sent from NRCS
stating that they were probably going te do the
engineering work.

0. " Now, did you give Mr. Vos credit for having

submitted a2 plan of action based on this letter?

AL No.
Q. Why not?
A. It was missing the plan of action.
Q. What was regquired to be in Complainant's

Exhibit 18 for it to meet the requirements of the
plan of action?

A. Tt was required to have a complete operatioh
permit application, the preliminary conceptual design
of the runoff control structures and then the
estimated time line for préject completion.

Q. Would it be a fair assessmeﬁt of that plan

of action that it did not include any of the

reguirements that were necessary in the plan of

action?
A. Correct.
Q. So did you give Mr. Vos extra time to submit
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that plan of action?

A. Yes.

Q. And how much time did you givé him to submit
it?

 A. | I gave him 14 days to submit a COmpiét@ plan

of action.
Q. "Again, did Mr. Vos ever contact you with any

gquestions?

A. No.
0. I ask you to turn to Complainént's Exhibit
20, Now, what:is this document, Mr. Priexr?
| Al This would be the completéd plan of action.
Q. And it was submitted when?
A, Appraximafely June 10 of 2004.
. s that within the 14 days IDNR granted in

the last notice of violatioh?

A. NQ.

0. But vou still accepted it; is that correct?.
A. Yes. |

0.  Dpid you review it?

AL Yes.

Q. " Did you approve it?

A.  Yes.

Q. Are there any-- What were the significant

terms of the plan of action?
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A. He said he would éonstruct three sedimeht
detention basins and three waste storage ponds; that
the sediment basins would be designed into a 10myear,
24~hour storm and dﬁain into the storage ponds. The‘
diversions would be designed to a 25-year, 24—hourl
storm. And they used the NRCS technical manual for
developing those. |
And 1t also established the estimated gim@
line. He said he would submit final plans and
permits by November 30, 2004, 'plans and permits would‘
be approved on January 15, 20@5, construction would
begin on June 1, 2005, and const;uction would end on
November 30, 2005.
Q. So to reiterate, he provided & deadline that
his final plans would be in No%Ember 30, 2004; is
that correct?
A That's corréct.
o. Now; having réviewed the plan of action,
were you given any indication as to where those

retention basins would be placed?

A. Yes, the preliminary design had shown that.
Q. And where would they be placed?
A. They were goiﬁg to be placed northwest of

the facility, south and then northeast.

Q. Now, were those the places that you noted

PETERSEN COURT REPCRTERS
317 8ixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, ITA 50309-4155

(515Y 243-659¢0




10

11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

904
duxing your on-site assessment as being locations of
dischafges?

A. Pretty close.
‘Q. Now, Mr. Prier, I'll ask yoa to look a

little closer at that and to your best ability, can

‘you please assess whether those storage ponds would

address the discharge points you noted?
A. Do you have a cleaner copy of this at all?

MR. BREEDLOVE: I have soﬁe extra copies, if
I may.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: We'll go off.
thé record for a minute.

(Off~the-record discussion.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. In an
off—the~record'discussion, counsei for EPA,
Mr. Breedlove, is going to replace from the
Complainant's exhibit book from Complainant's Exhibit
20 the existing Page'9 with a color copy of Page 9
with the intention of having it be clearer.

Is that okay by you, Mr. McAfee?

MR. McAFEE: Yes, 1t is, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Ali right.
I'm going to remové and hand back the original Page 9

to Mr. Breedlove.
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BY MR. BREEDLOVE:

0. Mr. Pri@r;'now that we'ﬁ@ provided vyou a
better copy to evaluate, baéed on the information you
gathered during your on-site assessment if storége
basins or retention ponds were placed in these
locations, do you believe they would address the

discharge poiﬁts‘you identified at the facility?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, did you issue an approval for these
plans?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. | And when did you do that?

A. ~On August 26, 2004.

Q. Are you lobking at Complainant's Exhibit 217

A, Yes.

0.  And what was that letterxr?

A. This was a plan of action approﬁal for the

open feedlot manure control structures that was sent
to Mr. Vos on August 26, 2004, stating that his plan

of action had been approved and reminded him that his

‘estimated time line states that the final design will

be completed and submitted on November 30, 2004. And

once a final site design was submitted, a. site survey
would be conducted and construction permit would be

issued.
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0. Now, did Mr. Vos meet that November 30}
2004, deadline?
A. No.

Q. Now, in the plan of action, was there any

‘mention of alternative technology or other forms of

containment?
AL No.

Q. Now, Mr. Prier, I'd iike you to turn to

Complainant's Exhibit 22. Can you please identify

this Complainant's Exhibit 22.

A, "This was an April 28, 2005, failure to meet
submittal deadline.for final enginéering plan, ﬁoticer
of Violation,_immih@nt terminatipn‘of participation
in the Iowa Plan sent to Lowell Vos.

| 2% Now, at this point do.you know approximately
how late Mr. Vos was infsubmitting his final plans?

A, He was past--well past six months.

0. Now, had you since the subﬁission~~since you
had approved Mr. Vos' plan of action, in thg time

T

between when you approved Mr. Vos' plan of action and

when IDNR issued this April 28, 2005, letter, did.you
redei&e any contact from Mr. Vos regarding this
faciility?

A. No.

MR. MCAFEE: I'm sorry, Your Honor, i
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apologize for interrupting. I didn't hear the

. gquestion or the answer to that.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: What happened
was actually the witness answered the question‘before
Mr. Breedlove finished it. |

And so you want to wait and make sure until
he finishes,,aﬁd he's supposed to wait for the
answer. |

Repeat that“last guestion.

BY MR. BREEDLOVE: ’

Q. Mr. Prier, at any time when you issued the
approval of the plan of action and between when ED&R
igssued this notice of violation, immin@ht.termination
of participation in‘the‘lowa Plan, did vyou réceive
any contact from Mr. Vos in regard to his facility?

Al No.

Q. Now, Mr. Prier, I1've got photo No. 2 from
Complainant's gxhibiﬁ 28.

MR. BREEDLOVE: May I approach, Your Honor?

THE ADMINiSTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.

BY MR. BREEDLOVE:

Q.  Could you please identify that photo for the
Court.
A. This is the unnamed tributary that flows

along the northwest side of the Lowell Vos feedlot.
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Q. Now, is this approximately where you
observed the discharge on June 25, 20037

A. Yes. |

Q. Coul& you‘please come around to the light
pro.

MR. RYAN: May we go off the record for just
one moment, Your Honor?

fHE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.

(Off-the-~record discussion.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Back on the
ﬁecord. | |

MR. BREEDLOVE: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. BREEDLOVE:

0. Mr. Prier, could you please mark on this
photograph where you identified the discharge
occurring on June 25, 2003. -

A.. To get approximate will be tough with the
snowdrifts there, but probably in this area héfe.

{(Witness maxks‘on exhibit.)

Q. Could you please place the dgte when you saw
.it. |

A. '{Witness marks on exhibit.)

o. Noﬁ, Mr. Prier-- Thank you. You can take

your seat.

A, Okay.
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MR. BREEDLOVE: Your Honor, at this time I
would liké fo move into evidence Complainant's
Exhibit 54, the aerial photograph that Mf. Prier
marked. |

MR, MdAFEE: I just want to make sure,-weﬁre
admitting not what we're looking at on the screen,
but--

MR. BREEDLOVE: The aerial photograph.

MR. McAFEE: . I have no objection.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: What was
previously offered for identification as

Complainant’'s Exhibit 54 without obijection is

‘admitted. 54 is admitted.

(Complainant's Exhibit 54
was recelved in evidence.)

MR. BREEDLOVE: I also at this time would
liké té make a motion to enter into evidence the
photqgraph marked by Mr. Prier as Complainant's
Exhibit 55.

MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, I'm going_to object
to this exhibit. I just don't believe a proper
foundation has been laid for Mr. Prier's testimony
that that is where he was when he observed a June 25
of '03 event.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I agree with
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you, s0 I'm sustainiﬁg the objeCtion.. Yoﬁ can try
and lay a better foundation. He didn't take this
photograph. The photograph was taken in March of
2008.

Frankly, I den't know how one could
determine how tﬁis looks different from hundreds,
maybe thousands of other sites in Iowa. .So you need
to lay a better foundation.

MR. BREEDLOVE: I'll try, Your Honor, if I
can.

MR. RYAN: May we have just one minute, Your
Honof? : |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: You're going
to counsel now? I'11 let youfdo that. We'll go off
the record.

(Off-the-record discussion.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Back on the
record.

BY MR. BREEDLOVE:

Q. Mr. Prier, could you come back around to the
light pro, please. | |

A, Yes.

Q. Mr. Prier, looking at the photograph in
front of you, is that a fair and accurate

representation of the location which you observed the

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IA 50309-4155

(515} 243-6596




llG
11
12
13

14

15

16

17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

911
dischérge on June 25, 20037

A. Yes.

0. Now, on Complainant's Exhibit 54‘below it,
for the Court wpuld you please identify on that
aerial photograph, Complainant's Exhibit 54, where
you were when you saw this discharge cccurring on
June 25, 2003.

A. I was standing on the road approximately
right here where the dot is on the top of the P.
(Witness marks on exhibit.)

.Q. Could vou draw a line off of there tb mark
that that's where you were standing.

A, Yes,. (Witness marks on exhibit.)

Q. Now, if you would do us a favor and bring
the map a little bit lower so everybody caﬁ see it.

A. Sorry.

MR. BREEDLOVE: Your Honor, I make a motion
to enter into evidence Cqmplainant's Exhibit 55.
MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, I--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: We're not

looking at Complainant's Exhibit 55 right now; right?

MR. BREEDLOVE: We should be.
Mr. Prier, could you please move that up on
the light pro. 1

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: So you want
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to admit Complainant's Exhibit 55.

You have an objection?

MR. MCAFEE: Yes, I do, Your Honor. I
object that I don't believe a proper.foundation has
been laid that the witness can.recall correctly that
this is the place where he saw that.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE?Y I'm going to
sustain the objection. There are too many |
infirmities with using this.  Effectively, it seems
to.me that you're attempting sort of a backdoor route

to, although 1it's not the same, to get in the

' photographs which I denied.

Those'photographs were the photographs that
I dealt with at the‘outset of the hearing; correct?
That's right, Mr. Mcéfee? |

MR. McAFEE: Yes.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: For a number
of reasons, this witnesé—~

Mr. Prier, you didn't take photograph NG . 2;
right?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE AﬁMENISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Were you at
the site on Mérch 11, 20087 |

THE WITNESS: No.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: And you're
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trying to relate back this picture--this picturé that
you've markéd, that relates to wheﬁ you were there on
June 25, 20037

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE ADMENISTRATIVE.LAW JUDGE: Aill right.
There would have been no snow in Iowa on June 25,
2003; correct?. |

THE WITNESS: Correct.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I'm
sustaining Mr. McAfee's objection, so I will not

allow in Complainant's Exhibit 55. I gave you a

second chance to try to do it, but I'm not--I'm not

saying you would have been successful. I just gave

you anocther opportunity[ So you have to move on to

something else.

MR.-BREEDLOVE: Just for the record, have we
mo&ed Complainant's Exhibit 54 into evidence, the
aerial photograph? 7

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I think
that's where vou got mixed up. But Complainant's
Exhibit 54 is--at least now you're moving that into
evidence. |

Do you have objection to that, Mfé McAfee?

MR. McAFEE: Carn I make sure which one is

Exhibit 54?2 Is that what I'm looking at right now?
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MR. BREEDLOVE:‘ Yes, Mr. MchAfee.
MR. McAFEE: I have no objection to that.
THE,ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: All right.
Of course, I don't have a copy of 54 as marked.
M?. BREEDLOVE: I will provide it for you.
THE ADMINISTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: Complainant's
Exhibit 54 is admitted. 7
(Complainant's Exhibit 54
was received in evidénce.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: So the next

one, i1f there is a next cne, would be 56 because we

didn't allow 55.
BY MR. BREEDLOVE:
0. Mr. Prier, have you ever witnessed any othex‘

dischérges from Mr. Vos' facility?

A. Yes.
Q. | When was that?
A. That was last Thursday.
Q. Why were you up near Mr. Vos' facility?
A, I drove by the‘faci}ity to familiarize

myself with.the.geographic lay of the land and just
how the stream had flowed and just to refamiliarize
myself with it.

MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, I'm going to object

to this testimony as being after the date of .
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prehearing exchanges, and I was not made aware of
this testimony prior to right now.

MR. BREEDLOVE: Your Honoxr, I believe the
prehearing exchanges lay out that Mr. Prier will
testify to inspections he's d@ne at the facility and
testify to his cbservations. And this would be an
observation of this facility, so I don't beiieﬁ@ it's
outside of the range.of what he's been‘notified he'1l
testify to.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I want to
hear a little bit more because I'm still mulling over
my'ruling onlit.

Go ahead, Mr. McAfee.

MR. McAFEE: May T ask again when the
witness 1is saying he--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: You want to
do a veoir dire, in effect?

MR, McAFEE: Could the cou;t reportér read
back to me the date that the witness 7just said he was
there, 1f that would be okay?

‘THE-ADMINISTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: Please read
that question back.

(Rédord read by the reporter.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: My problemn

with this is--and I want to hear from both sides--it
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seems to me that—--I don't get how that's material to
ﬁhis proceeding because I thought everyone.agreed
that at least as of now and at sometime in the not
too distant past, this facility is in cdmpliance
because it's under a thousand head anyway. So I'm
not sure how thét helps me figure out~--so I'm |
guestioning the materiality of it.

Your Sbjection is a different objeétion.
Your objecﬁion is to surpfise. But.I don't
understand. I'm Sﬁrprised your obijection isn't also
to materiality.

MR. McAFEE: Well, Youxr Honor, if I may, I
would object to materiality.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Are you just
saying that?

MR. McAFEE: No, no. Your Honor, there has
been-- As you'll see 1in the posthearing briefs, much
of what EPA has presented has been after the facility
has been below a thousand head. And so tha£ part--
yeah, I agree, and we will be dealing with that in
the posthearing brief.

So I agree what he's t@stﬁfying to is not a
compiiance issue right now because my client is in
compliance, ai least from what I_éan hear from the

witness' testimony thus far. It depends, I guess,
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what the discharge was.

So, yeah, I have a problém with that, and I
just--it seems like, Yéur Honor, I'm getting--
starting vesterday and into today--and I don't mean
to do a_narrative‘here——but I'm getting a lot of
testimony and evidence that is a surprise to me, and
I don't appreciate that.

And I~-~1've trie& to have a free and open
exchange.r And I dén't agree with Mr. Bréédlove's
expianatioh that I should have been aware of this.
This happened last Thursday, and I could have been
made aware that the witness was goinglto testify to
something like this before now. .

And T would have probably étillnobjected,
but i do not beliéve it's pfoper for the witness to
testify as to what I understand he is going to for
those reasons I have just stated.

THE ADMINESTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Mr. Breedlove,
is it EPA's position that once Mr. Vos' feedlot was
at or below a thousénd head there's no compliance
issues anymore?

MR. EREEbLOV&: Your Honor, the issue in
this case is the fact that Mr. Vos has alleged that
he's never discharged except for the event of a 256-

year, 24-hour storm.
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THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: My question
is-- Help me out with mine, then yoﬁ can tell me
something else. But am I not correct--tell me if I'm
not understanding this-~but once a feedlot owner,
such as Mr. Vos,‘has less tﬂan a thousand head, EPA
doesn't get involved in regulétion of discharges if
it's less than a‘thousaﬁd head; is that correct?

MR. BREEDLOVE: There's somé nuances to
that, but going below a thousaﬁd head of cattle gets
him under the definition of a large CAFO; that is
correct.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: _Doeslhe need
ah NPDES pefmit if he's below a thousand? |

MR. BREEDLOVE: There are huances to the
CAFO rules that do‘require permits 1f the discharge
is goihg through a manmade conveyance or 1f there's a
st?eamrrunning through the facility. |

lTHE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: We don't have
that here, do we?

MR. BREEDLOVE: We're not alleging that,

“Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:C I'm going to
sustain the objection on Qrounds of materiality as
opposed to surprise.

MR. BREEDLOVE: Your Honor, I'd like to make
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an ¢ffer of proof in regard to why the information
Mr..Prier is Qresenting is material to the case that
the Government is presenting.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE.LAW JUDGE : I'll allow
you toc make an offer of preof. By the way, by an
offer of proof, so we're talking on the same grounds,
my undefstanding of that is that if i wére to allow
this witneés to testify to this, that the Government
would expect that he would sfate it, and then he
would say what it is; right? That's how it works for
me. .

MR..BREEDLOVE: I can délthat, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I don't know
of other wéys that it works. Go ahead, so do that.

MR. BREEDLOVE: Your Honor, I would ask
Mr. ?rierw— |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: No, you're

"going to'just_tell me, "If Mr. Prier were allowed to

answer that guestion, the Government expects that he
would testify"——.'That's the offer of proof.

. MR. BREEDLOVE: Mr. Prier would éestify that
he drove by the facility lést Thursday. He would
testify that he saw discharges coming from the berm

where he's seen discharges occur before.

He would also testify that he was able to
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see pooling of water.down by the road where the
unnamed tributary flows by, would alsco seejblack
watér +hat's associated with feed water runoff.

He'll also testify that it wasn't raining at
the time he was there, that it had rained far less
than the Z5-yearn, 24—hour‘storm'th@ day Eefore.

What this does is goes to the iséuelof
whether 1f the Respondent's facility has discharged
as a result of a storm other than--less than a 25-
year storm. The argument that his answer has
presented is that he may have discharged, but it was
never in any instance except for the 25-year, Qé—hour
storm,

What we now have 1is two instances where, in
fact,'it was less than a 25~year storm, so we believe
it goes to the heart of the liability issue here.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Ckavy. My

ruling stands. And you've made an offer of proof, so

you can move on to something else now.

MR. BREEDLOVE: Okay. Thank you, Your
Honor.
BY MR. BREEDBLOVE:
Q. Mr. Prier, on June 25, 2003, when you
performed your on-site assessment, you testified that

you observed the discharge during that time; is that
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correct?

A. Yes.

0. Was it raining at the time of that on-site
inspection?

A, No.

Q. . Had it rained the day before?

A I'd have to look at the precipitation

records to remember.

MR. BREEDLOVE: Your Honor, no further
questions.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Do you
rieed a few minutes, Mr. McAfee? ‘ -

MR. McATFEE: Yeg, if I could( Your Honor.
Yes, please. | |

| THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:  So we'll have

a five-minute break here.

(Sheort receés.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Please be

.seated.

Mr. McAfee, we'fe on the record.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY M?. McAFEE:
Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Prier. I'm Eldon
McAfee, and I'm representing Lowell Vos.

A, Okavy.
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Q. 2nd I have a few queétions for you. ‘I.think
we'll start with the exhibit that is up in front of
you right now.
MR. McAFEE: " May I approach, Youxr Honor?
THE ADMINISTRATEVE LAW JQDGE: Yes, you may.
MR. McAFEE: I'm not going to pretend to
know’the number of this exhibit.without looking at
it.
BY MR._M@AFEE:
Q; Complainant's Exhibit 54. Now, as I
understand it, your testimony, Mr. Prief, related to

this exhibit is to an event that.héppened'in what

year?
A. 2003.
Q. Ckay. Héw many vears ago was that?
A. Approximately five.
0. Ahd.you're ﬁestifying here today based

on--that related to an inspection report; is that

right?
A. An on-site assessment report.
0. Okay. Let's go to that. Along with loocking

at that exhibit, let's go to the on-site asseésmént
report. That's Exhibit 15, if I remember correctly.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I take it you

agree?
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THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. McAFEE:
Q. Wag that the only reason you were at the
site that day was to do an onwéite,inspectioﬁ report?

A. I believe there was a complaint filed about

the facility also.

Q. And how &o you recall that?

A. From reviewing thé file when T went through
the papers to fax them to EPA whenever they started
their hearing. |

Q. And do you recall the nature of the
complaint?

A, The nature of the complaint was the
neighbor, I believe, had.stated that manure was
flowing out the northeast Side of the facility and

was hérming their property.

0. Northeast side?
- Al Yes.
Q. Okay. Not the side we're looking at here?
A. Correct. | |
Q. So you weré r@sponding to a complaint also,

as well as doing the on-site inspection report?
A, Yes.
Q. In responding to a complaint, would you--

Well, first of all, this inspection report does not
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note that; is that correct?
A, That's corresct.

a. So in responding to that would you normally
have sample cocllection equipmeht or materials with
you?

A. Yes, every time we go out in our vehicles we
have field sampling eguipment with us.

0. What deoes that entall?

A. .Thét entails an ammonia test kit for high
range and low rangé, dissolved oxygen test kit, a pH
meter, the calibration‘iiqﬁids for calibrating the.pH
meter and a tempgrature. |

Q. Do you also have sample bottles to take
samples that coﬁid be submitted for laboratory

analysis?

A, Yes.
Q. And did you have those with you that day?
A, Yes.

0. Did you find any basis for the complaint

when you were there that day?

A. Under Iowa law, there is no basis for manure
flowing over prop@rty. We only have it dealing with
manure entering waters of the state. So we didn't

find a violation of the Iowa law for that complaint.

Q. Okay. So the complaint was resolved without
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any violation attributed to Mr. Vos?

A For that area, ves,.
Q. Okay. I just want to say it again. Please
answer my question. The complaint that was

submitted, vour investigation revealed there was no
vioclation of Iowa law; is that correct?
AL For the complaint, yes.

Q. Okay. Now, so you're there--had you planned

to be there on an on-site inspection anyway?

A, Since we were doing the complaint, we were
trying to do two things at one time and also complete
the on-site assessment since he registered for the

Jowa Plan.

L Q. And there were three of you there that day?
A. Yes.

Q. Ken Hessenius?

A Correct..

Q. Who is he?

>

He is the Spencer field office environmental
supervisor.

Q. For our court reporter; would you please
spell his last name.

A, H-E-S-S-E-N-I-U-g.

Q. And who else was with you?
A. Rick Martens, an environmental specialist
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from the Manchester field office.

Q. I believe you testified he was‘in traihing?
A. Yes.

0. And Ken-~ Were yoﬁ in trainin@ also?

A. Yes.

Q- And whaﬁ were you in training for?

A. I wés in training on how the department had

established the protocol to conduct these on-site

assessments.

Q. I believe in response to a guestion from
Mr. Breedlove, you testified that you had~-this was

one of the first on-site inspections you conducted?

A, Yes.

Q.  Had Ken Hessenius been doing them before?
AL Yes.

Q. So how many had Ken done; do you know?

A

I don't know off the top of my head.
Q. So when you testified that this was one of
the first ones you had done, that doesn't mean it was

one of the first cnes the department had done under

the Iowa Plan; is that correct?

A. That's correct.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let me Jjust
stop yvou for a second.

(Off-the-record discussion.)
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~ THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Back on the
record.
MR. McAFEE: Thank you.
Could the reporter read back my last
guestion.
{(Record read by the reporter.)
BY MR. McAFER: |
0.  Now, back to your visit that day, looking at

Exhibit 15 does it tell us what time of day you were

there?

A, No.

Q. Do.you recall what time of day you were
there? |

K. T believe it was in the mid-morning.

0. What 4did you dd when you first got there?

A. T believe we met Mr. Vos at his residence, 1

think, and then we went to the feedlot'and sat in the

office that was there on site.

Q. So you had informed him you were coming--
A. Yes.
Q. —-as part of the on-site inspection

procedures?
A. Yes.
Q. When during your visit did you notice what

you have testified to as a discharge occurring?
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When we were driving to the office.

So you noticed it before you got there?

It would have been after picking up Mr. Vos

at his house--meeting him at his house and then

driving to the facility because he lives at a

different
Q.
A,
0.
A.
Q.
correct?
A.
Q.

it?

=

A
angle for

record?

location.
Who was in the car with you?
Ken and Rick.

And was Mr. Vos driving a separate vehicle?

I believe he was.

So you noticed it from the road; is that

Yes.

Did you take any steps to get any closer to

. No.

So your entire observation is from the road?

"Yes.

Did you get out of the wvehicle?
Yes, I got out and stood to get a better
taking photographs.

MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, may we go off the

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE; Yes.

(Off-the-record discussion.)
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THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let's go on
the record. |

MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, I wduid:like an
admonition from the Court to the witness to not refer
to photographs on June 25, 2003, as those documents
have been excluded as evidence from this case.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes. And
yvou're so advised{ okay. I made a determination
because-~for important reasons that that evidence--~I
won't rehésh why, but I'm very confident about my
ruling that it was inappropriate to seek thét
evidence to be admitted at this late date. ‘So don't
make any reference to those photographs, please.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. Mr. Prier, again you said you sfopped the
car?

A. Yes,

Q. Are you the only one that got out?

AL Yes.

Q. S0 none of the other two'with you moved any

closer to observe what you have described as the
discharge?
A. No.

Q. How close did you get?
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A. I got to the shoulder of the road wherever .

it was overflowing, which was approximately 75 yards

awavy.
Q. Seventy-five yards?
A, Yes,.
Q. How did ybﬁ observe this? Did you have any

device to help you observe it, such as field glasses

or anything like that?

A. No .

Q. So you observed it with the naked eye?
A. I wear contacts, but yes.

0. Fair enough. What did you do after you

observed it from the road 75 yards away? What did
you do then?

A. We got back in the vehicle and went to

Mr. Vos' office and conducted thé-vezbal on-site

assessment.

Q. Now, you have testified p;eviously in answexr
to Mr. Breedlove's question that what you observed
was-- Well, would you describe for me again what you
believe you observed that day.

AL That day T observed‘on the berm that's
northwest of the facility a cut channel in the back
side of--the northwest side of the berm where brown

water with foam £lowing through that was cutting down
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through that berm, flowing across the cornfield and
then coming down the unnamed tributary bank. And as
it cascaded down, it was creating a foaming sensation
to it before it was entering the stream.

Q. Okay. Let's take that a step at a time.
First of all, you've used the term "céming over the
berm" or however you described it. ~ &ow far away
would that 5ave be@n} the berm?

A. That would have been fust to the southeést

of where it was entering the stream.

Q. Would that have been further than 75 yards
away?
A. That was a little further, yes, but it was

very visible with the naked eye.

0. I understand. I'm just trying to get a
sense of direction and distance. If we're looking at
exhibit--

MR. McAFEE: May.I approach, Your Honor?
TEE ADMENiSTRATIVE LAWIJUDGE: Yes, you may.
BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. (Continuing) ——Complainant‘s.Exhibit 54,
you're standing on the road where you've marked it
with the term "étanding Jeff here"?

A. Yes. |

Q. Where is the berm you are referring to? 1Is
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that wﬁere it is marked-- What is it marked with on
the exhibit?

A. There is a line through the berm and then
there i1s a "DT" for discharge terrace, I believe is
what I was instructed to write.

Q. | Aﬁd how'faf away are you testifying today
that that is from‘where you'weré standing?

A. | From where I waé standing that day,
approximately a hundred yards. |

Q. Okay. Then you have ﬁafked a point with a
DP-~is that correct?

A. Uh-huh{

Q. --where you are testifying--well, what are
you testifying as td that?

A. That's where thelmanure and effluent was

running into the unnamed tributary.

Q. And how far were you away from that?
A. Approximately 75 yards.
C. Well, forgive me, Mr. Prier, but--and it's

-your testimony——but'from the exhibit you've testified

a hundred yards approximately to what vyou marked DT

and you've testified 75 yards to what you've marked

DP, and this exhibit is to scale; am I correct?

A. I believe.

Q. It sure appears to me that it's a lot
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further to DT than it is tc DP, more than 25 yvards.
But it's your testimony, sir. Do you stand by your
testimqny?

A. From my angle looking at the rocad, the
straight line shot, I estimated it at a hundred
yards.

Q. Okay. Did you use any sort of device to
measure that distaﬁce,ﬂéuch as a range finder?

A. No.

Q. Did you make any notations that day as to
what you have just testified to?

A, No.

Q. . So you're going by a five-year-old memory;
is that correct?

A. That's why I drove béck by there on Thursday

was to refamiliarize myself with the area.

Q. Okay. Did you take any-distances that day?
A, No.
Q. "All right. ©Now, you've described a brown

coloration; i1s that correct?

A, Yes.
Q. Where did you see the brown?
A. The brown was coming out the back side .of

the terrace that's marked DT where the slash is and

then also where it's flowing down or the dash with
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the DP.
Q. So you saw a brown color in both places?
AL Yes.

Q. You've also testified you saw manure. I
believe you just testified a little bit ago you saw

manure entering the stream; is that correct?

A, Yes.
Q. You saw~~ What type of manure?
A. The effluent from the feedlot runs down to

the terrace area where the gray spot is on the aerial
photo and'runs'over the berm and then down over the
stream bank.

Q. When you're saying the term "manure," are

‘you talking about liquid?

A.  Yes.
Q9.  Bll right. 1Is that different than what

vou've testified to as effluent?

A. No, it's kind of the same term.

Q. .And was that what you're-déécribing as’
brown?

A. Yes.

0. Did you see anj solid manure?

A. No.

Q. | Okay. So whénlycu—— QOkay. You'wve
testified to manure and a liquid. That is one and
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the same?

Al In some cases, yes.

Q. No, I'm asking what you're testifying to
nowf Is that the same thing? When you're testifying

today as to manure and liguid, is that the same

substance you're talking about?

b, There's manure in the ligquid.

Q. I mean, that's your festimony. I'm trying
to understand. Did you see something other.than a
liguid?

A No.

Q. OCkay. And is that the brown color you're

talking about?

A, Yes.

Q. And that's what you saw from 75 yardé away?
A, Yes.

Q. Now, 1in between.what you've marked with a DT

and a DP, how far do you think that is?
A, It's hard te know fdr sure with the corn

crop that was growing on June 25th.

Q. How tall was the corn that day?

A. I would estimate knee high or shorter.
o. éune 25th?

A. Yep.

0. pid you walk out in the corn?
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A.  Nope.

Q. Rgain, you'ré baéing that tes{imony on what
you remember from five years ago?A

VA. Yeah.

Q. Could you see from point DT to point DP
the--could you see this liguid thét yoﬁ're testifving
fto in the corn?

A, No.

Q. So from point DT to point DP you Qouldn‘t
connect the two; is that correct?

A. No.

Q. Pardon me?
k. No, we could not connect it.
Q. All right. At point DP, tell me exactly

what you saw again.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: At which
point now?

MR. McAFEE: DP, as in party.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

A. I saw brown water flowing down.th@ stream

bank; and as it cascdded down, it created a foam.
BY MR. McCAFEE:

‘Q. When you talk about cascading down, do you

mean flowing over the edge?

A. Flowing down the eroded stream bank.
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0. The ercded stream bank?

AL Yes.
. What do you mean by that?

>

It was bare dirt. It wasn't a nice wéterway

or rock riffraff.

- Q. On the stream bank or in the field?
A On the stream bank.
Q. Okay. Did you see ény tile lines present

anywhere fhere?

A. No. We had asked Mr. Vos during the
assessment, and he said there was no tile lines.

Q. ‘Where?

A. In the runoff area where the liguid manure
would run. |

Q. So you talked to Mr. Vés about this during
your assessment?

A, Yes. That was the question on the--our
manmade conduits, is -there any subsurface tile line
present in the runoff area or intakes, and.he
answered no.

Q. Would you please direct me to what you're
on.

A. Page 2, the second page of the on-site
assessment, it =says "manmade conduits;" and the

second item says "surface tile intakes present in
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¥

runoff area,™ and it says "no," and the one

immediately below that says "subsurface tile lines'

present in runoff area," and it says "no."

Q. .Okay. And what runoff area are you talking
apout?

A. In all of them.

Q. Okay. And‘did Mr. Vos understand what you

were talking about as far as runoff area?

A, I ¢an only assume,

Q. And I realize that's--I shouldn't ask you
what Mr. Vos understood, but did youlexplain to him
exactly what you meant by runoff area?

A. I don't remember if wé explained exactly.
There was two of us asking questions that dayl

Q. Did-- And the area we're talkin§ aﬁout,

there's corn planted there; is that right?

A. During that visit, yes.
'Q. That's what we're talking about, the day you
were there. This foam you observed, would that be

consistent with a foam you would see with water

running over the edge of a bank? Is that what you're

saying?
A. If it's high in organic matter, vyes.
Q. Would you see a foam like that if it didn't

have organic matter in 1it?

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Sulte 606
Des Moines, IA 50309-4155

{515) 243-65%96




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17
18
1
20
21
22
23
24

25

939

A. Not typically.

Q. Have you seen foam like that when water runs
over the edge of a bank without organic matter in it?

AL Not as thick.

Q. But that wasn't ﬁy guestion. My question‘
was have you séen foam like‘that when water runs over
the edge of a bank without.organic matter as you
testified to?

A. All walter has ozganic'matter in it.

Q. That's not my guestion, sir.

THE ADMENESTRATIVE LAW JSUDGE: Try and--
Rather than trying to argue with counsel, the EPA
attorney will ask you questioné if he feels that
there’é been a slanted presentation. But his
gquestion was pretty direct. Instead of just
answering him, you know; you sort of are battling
back. What I'd like to do-- 1It's a very simple‘
guestion. All right.

So do you want to have 1t reread, the

gquestion?

MR. McAFEE: "Yes, please.
{Last queétion read by the reporter.)
A. Yes.

THFE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Thank you.
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BY MR. MCAFEE:
0. “Now, you've testified after seeing this
that, of courée, you did not move ;loser?
A. Yes.
Qf So you didn't get a close-up look at what

you were observing?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you get a cioser—up look?

A.  YNo. |

Q. Did you consider taking a sample of that

material that you observed?

A, Not at that location.
Q. - Why did you not consider taking a sample?
A. We were not building an enforcement case.

We were there as an educational visit for the Iowa

Plan.

Q. But you're here testifying today in this
action of what you observed; is that correct?

A. Yes. |

0. Would a sample——' Let's start with a field
sample. Would a field sample have helped you

determine if there were any pollutants in that

runcif?
AL For certain parameters,lyes, it would.’

Q. My guestion was would a field sample have
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helped you determine if there were pollutants in that

runoff?
A. | Yesl
Q. But you did not take one at that point?
A.  Not at that location. |
Q.  Would a sample bottle that you could have

then sent to a lab, would that have done a better job
of helping you determine if there were pollutants in

that runoff?

A. Yes.

Q. But you did not do that?

A. No.

0. You did, however, then take the initiative

to take a field sample at the location marked

"sample" on the map; is that correct?

A. Yes.
0.  And tell me again why you did that.
A, That was so Ken could refamiliarize Rick

Maftehsland myself with the test kits and what
typically'happens when effluent and manure and rﬁnoff
igs in a stream from an open feédlot versus a
confinement. PBecause Rick had not worked with any
open feedlot runoff vyet. |

0. And again, did yoﬁw@ Well, you remember

this discussion from five years ago?
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A. Well, not an exact discussicn, but that's

why we took it.

Q. How do you remember that now?

A. Because‘Ken was training Rick and I te do
that. |

Q. So you took a field test kit; is that right?

A. Yes.,

Q. In yéur experience, does the department

bring enforcement actions based upon a field test kit

‘sample?'
A. Not all the time.
Q. Okay. Have they ever in your experience?
A, No.
0. So‘why did you answer my first question with

not all the Time?
A. - Well, if.we collect more samples, we will.
Q. But based-- My questipﬁ was based on a
field test kit gample does the‘department bring an

enforcement action?

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Okay. You would follow up with a water
sample?

A. Typically, yes.

Q.  For lab analysis? .

A.. Yes.
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o And you did not do that in this case either?
A. No.
Q. Did you observe anything else at the point

where you took the sample--

A No.

0. -—related to the condition of tﬁe unnamed
tributéry?

A. The stream was brown in color, the unnamed
tributa%y.

| 0. Okavy. rAnd what do you attribute that to?

A, Feedloﬁ.runoff.

.Q. Anything else that it could be attributed
to? | |

A. It could be due to sediment‘if we had heavy
rains..
| Q. Okay. Did you see sediment?

A. We didn't sample for sediment.

Q. . Could you see any sediment?

A. Notlﬁﬁat I remember.

0. Why didn't you sample for sédiment?

A. We don't have any way to sample for
sediment.

Q.  Okay. 'In response to my guestion you said

L

"if we would have sampled for sediment,” I believe is

what'you Said; I'm sorry,-‘Would you like to answer
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that gquestion?

A. I don't remember saying we'd sample for
sediment.
Q. At this location you've testified that you

were looking for sediment also; is that what ydu
testified to?

A. | I don't thihk SO.

Q. Okay. Were'you looking for-sediment from
the Lowell Vos feedlot at this location?

A. No£ sedimént.

Q. Okay. What were yoﬁ looking for.when you
stopped to take the sample?
| A. - We Were looking to con&uct a water gquality
sample for ammonia and pH;

Q. And I believe I asked you if you observed
any - other conditions that led ydﬁ to believe that
there was runoff occurring from the LowelllVos'
feedlot or séméthing similar to that. Did you

observe anything else?

A. From running off the other fields-—-
0. Yes.
A. —-o0r from his facility? The only place we

saw--observed a discharge or runoff was from the
terrace area up by the road.

Q. What did you observe at the sample location?
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A. We observed brown Qater.

Q. Okay. And what do you attribute the brown
water to?

A. We attribute it to the feedlot runoff.
That's why we collected a sample.

0. Okay. And my question was, could it be
attributed to anything else?

A. I said yes.

Q. - Okay. And is that where you mentioned the
sediment?

A, I said it could be from sediment.

Q. Okay. Do you attribute the sediment to the

Lowell Vos feedlot?

A. It could have come from anywhere.
Q. Ckay. That's what I wanted to make sure I

understood.

A. Okavy.

Q. What did you do after that?

A. We packed.up and headed home.

0. Okay. And in between there you had

conducted the on-site assessmeht; is that correct?

A, Yes.

Q. And you came to the conclusion that it was a
medium priority feedlot; 1is that correct?

A. Yes.
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Q. Ckay. I'd like to go back fto Exhibit 15 for
a minute.

A, That's the on-site assessment form?

Q. Yes.
‘A. Yep.
Q. This is where you noted the-~-under "runcff"

you noted the evidence of ligquid runoff reaching

state waters; correct?

C A, Yes.
Q. And you circled "yes"?
A. Yes.
Q. "Is. there anywhere here where you note--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Excuse me.
Did he circle "yes"? We're looking at Page 11 of 27,
Compléinant‘s Exhibit 157

| MR..McAFEE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Is the
guestion solids reaching staté waters, is.that what
vou're referring tb?

MR. McAFEE: It's the next guestion.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I see. It's
the next one. I'm sorry.

That does indicate, is that right,

" ™

Mr. Prier, that you circled "yes" for that guestion

which asks evidence of ligquid runoff reaching state
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waters, and you did circle "yes"?
THE WITNESS:  That's correct.
THE ADMINISTRATiVE‘LAW JUDGE: I'm sorry.

Go ahead, counsel.

BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. In the margin on the left-hand side of-the
page éomeone has written in a--some letters and a
number. Could you read that to us.

A. It looks iike A, maybe.a U or a V and
then——min@'s kind of bluxry~~and a G or a @, mavybe,

and then a 22 after that.

Q. Did you‘write that on‘thexe?

A, No. | |

Q. ‘Did you £ill this form out?

A. T believe Ken filled this form out because

that's not my handwriting.

Q. Okay. So Ken Hessenius would have been the
one who would have made the comments here? |

A | Yes.

Q. Does that-- VThOS@ letters and nuﬁbérs,

could that be average 227

A. Tt could be.

Q. And that doesn’'t mean anything to.you?

A. No, it doesn't.

Q. And so you did not write in there "3.0 MG/L"?
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A. No, that is not my handwriting.

0.  And you did not write in "ammonia 7.4 pH"?
A That's correct.

o. Those are the readings you got from your

field test kit; is that correct?

A. Yes.
Q. I'd then like to go to the next page of the
form. This 1is dn a different subject, but something

that has come up during this testimony or during this
case. About two-thirds of the way down there ié,a
heading that states "manure handling methods." Do
you see that?

A; Yes.

Q. And it says "manure solid scraping” and the

"yes" is circled?

A Yes.
Q. And then "fregquency of removal," and there's
something written in the blank. Did you write that

in there?

A, No, I did not.

0. Do you know what that means?

A. _i assume it's one week..

Q. Okéy. What would that mean to you?

A. That would mean to me on average after

visiting other feedlots .that's when the frequency of
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sctaping would be.

Q. Would that mean once per week?
A. One per week, vyes.
Q. And is that your understanding of what

Lowell Vos was doing?

A, I believe typically the feedlot producer
would answer on averége they get out there once a
week, sometimes in the summer more, sometimes in the

tougher times of the year they get out there‘less.

Q. But what did Lowell Vos say?

A. He said one week on average.

Q. He said on average?

A. I don't rememb@r.for sére.

0. But you just tegtified to that.

A. Okay.‘

Q. What did Lowell Voslsay?-

AL One week.

Q. . Okay. I'd now like to go through--

Mrl Breedlove went through with you'éome of the
documents related to Mr. Vos' participation in the
Iowa Plan. And i don't_believe I need to go ‘back
through all of those with you, but in general you
ﬁestified that Mr. Vos missed several deadlines; 1is
that correct?

A. Yes.
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0. Did you ever have any conversations with his

engineer?

A, Not his engineer.

Q. Okay. Who did you have conversations with?
A. The district conservétionist, I believe.

Q. And who do yoﬁ mean, district

conservationist?

A Jerry Sindt.
0. And what is his position?
Al He is with the, I believe, Woodbury County

Natural Resources Conservation Service.

Q. And was NRCS acting as Mr. Vos' engineer?
A. Later in the program, vyes.
0. What were your conversations with Mr. Sindt

in general, if you can tell me?

A, From what I could remember, there was a
coupile discuséions about what had to be in ﬁhe plan'
of action and what they had to do to meet the
compliance schedule.

Q. Did you get any indication from NRCS that
they were having troubié meeting the deadlines

becaﬁse of their workload?

A. They were trying to go through the EQIP
program.

Q. Who 1s "they"?
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A, Lowell Vos and NRCS were working through the
EQIP progran.

Q. And what do you mean? Explain what you
mean—--~how that pertains to the question I asked you.

AL You asked me if th@y'were.working together
towards getting compliance.

Q. I believe I asked you if they were serving
as his engineeriﬁg firm and whether they were having
trouble meeting the deadlines. |

AL Yeah, you ésked me if they had trouble

meeting the deadlines. And that's why they were

‘having trouble meeting the deadlines because

Mr. Sindt had said they were working through the EQIP

program, and it was taking longer.
Q. Did he say anything about their workload in

getting work done for producers in the Iowa Plan?

A. Tf I look ét some letters,'that might
refresh my Memory . ~But I don't remember on’ the phoﬁe
calls.

0. Okay. You don't remember, as we sit here

today, whether he told you anything like ﬁhat?

A, . No. |

Q. Okay. And you've testified—— At least at
one point you tesﬁifi@d that you héd not talked to

Mr. Vos, I believe, in between two of your letters
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you said you were never contacted by him?

A. Not that I remember.

Q. - Were you contacted by NRCS?

A. Mr. Sindt.

Q. And I believe on Exhibit 15 at the bottom,

in fact, at the time of the on-site assessment
somebody wrote en here "talked to NRCS," is that
correct?

A, Thatfs correct.

Q. Okay. Is that your handwriting?
A. No.
0. Mr. Prier, is it a correct statement of Iowa

law to 'say that Mr. Vos could not start on any of his
feedlot contrels until he Had'a construction permit
from the departmenf?

AL For permitted structures, yes.

Q. Okay. So until he had é constrﬁction
perﬁit, he couldn't take any steps towards
constructiﬁg strucfures that require permits such aé
runoff control basins; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Would you please turn to Ccﬁplainant‘s
Exﬁibit 18. |

A, "Ckay.

Q. And is this a letter from Jerry Sindt of
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NRCS to Mr. Vos?

A. Yes.
Q. Could you read the first sentence, please.
A. It says, "It is high time I provide you with

a follow-up as to the status of your waste management

project." .

Q. And could you please read the last sentence,
pleasea.

A. "As this ?rocess goes forward I will try to
keep you updated. I am alsé learning as we go."

Q. What does. that mean to you?

A, That means Mr. Sindt was potentﬁally unaware

of.how the Iowa Plan was selt up.

Q. That's what you‘ascéftained'from reading
thig?
A. Yes, and what he needed to do to meet the

plan of action.
Q. - Okay. At some point did Mr. Vos secure the

services of a different engineer?’

A. At some point I believe he did.
Q. And do you know who thaf was?
A. If I think back to the file review, it was

Eisenpraun, I believe. ‘E-I-S-E-N~-P~R~-A-U-N I think

is how they spell it.

0. ‘And is that a person or a firm?
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A. It's an engineering firm in Yankton, South
Dakota, I believe. |

0. And do you know why they bécame involved?'

A. Typically, if NRCS and EQIP programs got
involved, they would contracthodt tolé private |
enginéef(

Q. Ultimately, was a consfruction permit

application submitted?

]

A. Yes,

Q. And, ultimately,.was‘that approved?

A, Yes. - | - -
Q. Do you remeﬁber how long it took for. that to

be approved?

A. No, I don't.

Q. What does JTowa law require for the DNRFW
How iong does the DNR have to approve a construction
permit applicétion?

A. For .a confinemént or open lot?

Q. I 5elieve it's the same, but tell‘memmwé’:e
dealing wifh an open‘lot hefe.

A. Prior to 2005 there was no time line for
open feedlots. After 2005 it was 60 days.

O. As you recall, did the department approve
Mr. Vos' permit application within the 60-day time

period?
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A. I:don't think so.
Q. FEarlier in this case a represantative of EPA
testified as to making the inspection of Mr. Vos'

feedlot on May 31st of 2006. Were ycu involved in

that?
Al No.
Q. Were you involved in preparing any documents

for that repxeéentative of EPA and providing those
documents to the representative of EPA?

A. . T don't remsember. If T did, I faxed what

was out of the file for what they reguested.

Q. You would have faxed those to him?

A. 0 mailed them.

Q. Okay. But ydu don't re¢all--

A. Sometimes when they reguest it, I'll garmark

what they'want and then hand it off toc our
administrative aésistant to do the mailing or the
faxing.

Q. Mr. Prier, you're involved in investigating

possible enforcement actions; 1s that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. How long have you been doing that?
A. Since chober of '98.

Q. And that would involve feedlots?

A. Feedlots, ves.
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Q. How many would you guess yoﬁ've been

involved in?

A, Close to 300. Enforcement cases or visits?
Q. Leé's talk enforcement cases.
A. | Maybe a half a dozen, or so.
0. Okay. And do you watch or stay informed on

any other enforcement cases that are going on in your
field cffice?

A. There's usually e-mails that come out from
the attorneys or the field office supervisor about
what cases are being referred for administrative

action. But I may not necessarily document or keep .

tabs on what's going ‘on for each site.

Q. And you're in the Spenger field office; is
that‘coxrect? |

A. . Yes.

Q. And does the Spericer field office--which is

“he northwest corner of the state; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. How many counties?

A Sixteen.

Q. Tt has Quite a few cattie.feedlots in that

district; right?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you have any idea of the number?
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A. Not off the top of my head, but a lot.

Q. Okay. In yvour experience, either in cases

you've been involved in directly or ones that you're'

aware of either from your-field‘office or from

anywhere else in JIowa, are you awgre Of‘the

Department df Natural Resources ever bringing an

enforcement action agaiﬁst a feedlot using a computer

model to prove a discharge to a watér of the state?
A. Not that I'm awafe of.

MR. McAFEE: Ne further questions, Your
Honor.

THE ADMENESTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Before
we have redirect, I just want to ésk you a couplé of
quéstions. This is really Jjust for the clarification
of the record. |

THE WITNESS: Sure.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes. If you

‘would just bring up Complainant's Exhibit 15.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: And you see
the second page of that it has headings such as wells
located on site and it has in bold manmade conduits.
Are you on that page?

THE ﬁITNESS: Yep.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: There is a
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referencé on .the manmade.conduits of surface tile
intakes presenﬁ. Do you see that?

THE WITNESS: Ves.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Do you know

what a surface tile intake is?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Would you
tell me what that is.

| THE WITNESS: It's a corfugated piece of
plastic pipe that can be anywhere from a foot high to
three foot high that is connebted to the subéurface
tile that helps with getting the pooled surface water
down into the tile colléction systemn fasfer.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Se you
referenced theﬁlth@ subsurface tile lines. Do you
want to tell me a littlé bit about what that looks
like.

THE WITNESS: That is corrugated plastic
pipé that are either p@rfoxatéd or nonperforated that
they typiéally put in about six foot below the
surface to assist in dewatering thelsoilﬂ

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okavy. I
don't know if it was of any momént, but I wanted to
have that description in there;

. All right. Redirect.

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IA 50309-4155

(515) 243-6596




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

- 25

959

MR..MCAFEE:' Your Honor, first I would like
to make-an offer of proof.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE‘LAW JULGE: Go ahead.

MR. McAFEE: What I would like to offer up
is Mr. ?rier has been instructed not to mention the
photogréphs, and I think he has dutifully obeyed that
order. iBut I think if he was asked whether he was
able to vieﬁ the discharge oécurring through.a
tele@hato lens oﬂ a camera he would say, vyes, he did.

So, therefore, with the distance from the stream he

was able to use some sort of device to sse it clearer.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:  Mr. MCAfee,
do you'have a response to this offer of preoof? I
guess the offer of proof can go in. It's not
evidence. But do you have any comment‘on that?

MR. McAFEEL: I would object to thaf, Your
Honor. Again, the photecgraph itself has been
excluded, and his means of viewing that was not for
purposes of viéwing it cleser, it was to take a
photograph. And I would not consider that a means of
viewing it cleoser for personal observation.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUbGE: I have real
problems with ﬁ;ying tof~in fact, I did note with

some surprise that someone supposedly could tell from

three~guarters of a football field away that certain

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IA H0309-4155

(515) 243-6596




10

11

12

13

.14

15

16

17

18

19

© 20

21
22
23

24

25

1960
effluent was ﬁanure. And I don't know that even--1
think there would be @videﬂtiary‘prbblems saying by
having'a telephcto lens that one can tell that.

But you've made your offer of proof, and I

‘stand by my ruling that I'm not going to allow

testimony about that.

MR. BREEDLCOVE: Okay.

THE ADMENISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Now, are you
ready for any redirect, or is that.the extent of your
redirect? Do you have anything else? So you have no
redirect?

MR. BREEDLOVE: No, I.am ready for redirect.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Go ahead.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. BREEDLOVE:

Q. Mr. Prier, how many feedlots have you been
involved witﬁ?'

A. Close to 300.

Q. ~Is there any doubt inryour mind that the
material~wthat the liguid you saw entering the
unnamed tributary was feedlot runoff?

A. No.

Q. Any doubt in your mind that it contained
pollutants associated with a feedlot?

A. No.
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Q. Mr. Prier, when you weré at the facility on
June 25, 2003, did vyou nptice what the conditiog of
the lots were? Did it appear as though it had been
recently scxaped?

A. I don't remember that.

Q. Ckavy. Than% you. Mr. McRhfee asked yéu.
about Respondent's ability to begin to build
containment structures, and I believe you comménfed
that he was not allowed to begin buildihg permitted
structures. Were-thef@ other structures he was able
to build under Iowa law? o

A. We woﬁld'allow temporary measures to stop
discharges from entering the water of the state until
they got.théir construction permits a?proved.

Q.V ‘Would he have been able to initiate
construction on the sedimeﬂtatioﬁ'basins?

A.. Yes.

Q. The only thing was the actual containment
structures because those required engineering and
permitting?

AL Correct .

MR. BREEDLOVE: Ne further gquestions, Your
Honor.
TﬁE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

Anything on recross?
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MR..McAFEE: Just very guickly.
RECROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. On the sedimentatibn basins you just talked
about, what is their purpose?

A.  Their purpose is to settle the solids out
before the effluent or liquid manure is releésed.into
the proper runoff control basin,

Q. Is that-- He did havé a sedimentation basin
at the time you had visited; is that correct?

A. There was é terrace there.

Q. Okay. And does a terrace serve as a
sedimentation basin?

A.. In certain cases it can.

Q. And he also has within that terrace the
sedimentation basin, does he not? |

A Yes.

MR. McAFéE: No further questions.
MR. BREEDLOVE: One more, Your Honor.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Sure.
FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION
Bf MR. BREEDLOVE;

Q. When you were there were there sedimentation

‘basins present at the north and south discharge

points?
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Al No.
MR, BREEDLOVE: I'm done, Your Honor.
THE ASMINISTRATEVE LAW JUDG@H Mr. McAfee.
FURTHER RECROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. MCAFEE:
Q. What are you referring to as the north
discharge point?
A, The one that éoas out to the north across

the_gravel road.

0. . To the northeast?
A. To the northeast.
Q. And there is a gravel road there with grass

in the.ditch, et cetera; right?

AL Correct. |

Q. lAnd vegetation,‘hatural features such as
grass and corn rows,uet cetera,’éan serve as
sedimentation~--the purpose of settling solids; is
that correct?

A. Yes.

MR. McAFEE: No further qﬁ@$tions.

MR. BREEDLOVE: No more guestions, Your

"Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Mr. Prier,
thank you for your testimony, sir. Why don't we go.

off the record.

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IA 50308-4155

(515) 243-6596




10

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

22

23

24

25

064
(Witness excused.)_

(Off~the—r@cord discussion.}.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Back on the
racord. Now,‘does that concludé EPA's case at leést
on diréct? I'm not talking about any rebuttal that
may oécur, but, Mr. Breedlove--

MR. BREEDLOVE: I believe EPA is finished
presenting evidence, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

MR. BREEDLOVE: . We rest.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: All right.

Now, it's 4:30, are you ready to beéin? |

MR. McAFEE: Yes, Your Honor. I think we
have two that I think would be relatively short
witnesses that we would like to present today, if we
could do it. |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE; Sure.

Good afternoon.

MICHAEL BEAVERS,
called as a witneés by counsel for the Respondent,
béing'first'duiy SWOIrn by the Administrative Law
Judge, was examined and testifiéd as follows:

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: The
convention we practice is you Jjust state your name as

yoﬁ would anyway, and then speii your name, at least
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your last name for us, ockay.
THE WITNESS: Michael Beavers,
B-E-A-V-E-R-S.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. McAFERL:

Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Beavers.
A Good afternoocn,
0. I'm going to put up an exhibit that you'll

be able to see on the screen that is just going to
be--well, 1it's Compzainant's Exhibit 1. Well, let me
check that. Theré might be a better one for us to
use.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I assumé'
you're going to ask him a few questions about who he
is and where he lives; right? - You're not just going
right to the exhibit, are you?

MR. McAFEE: I have to admit, T have to get

out of cross-examination mode and into direct

examination mode. So hopefully I can do that. Thank
you. May I approach?
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.
BY MR. McAFEE:
Q. Mr. Beavers, where do you live?
A. I live at 1037 Franklin Avenue, Kingsley,

Jowa.
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0.  And what I will have ﬁp on the screen here
in a minute will be an aerial photo sO we can show
the Court where you live.
A, Okay.
MR. RYAN: Whét exhibit nuﬁber are we
looking at, counsel?
MR. McAFEE:‘ Complainant's Exhibit 6.
MR. RYAN: Thank you.
BY MR. McCAFEE:
Q. Okay. Can you--I believé we need--excuse
me. I need to shut the lights off.
THE ADMINISTRATEVE-LAW JUDGE: Thank you,
counsel. |
BY MR. MCAFEEi.
Q. Mr, Beavers, do you recognize your
neighborhood from that photo?
A, Yeah.

Q. and can you-- Maybe you could come arocund

' here, if. you would, please, and show the Court where

you live in relation to the Lowell Vos feedlot.

A. Okay.

0. You can just point to it if you would like.
A. I live right here (indicating).

Q. Okay. And is that your farm place on--could

you just point to your farm place, your farmstead.

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 8ixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, TA 50309%-4155

‘ (515) 243-6596




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

A. Right there (indicating).

Q. So it's on the west side of that road?

A. Yes. |

Q. Ckay.‘ Thank you.

A. You're welcome.

Q. How long have you lived at that location,

Mr. Beavers?

967

A, Twenty-two years.

Q. What. is your occupation?

A. I'm a construction worker.

Q. And have you been a éonstruction'worker foxr

all those 22 vyears?

A. No.
Q. What did you--
A. I was at John Morreil Meat ?acking for 106

years, and then I went into construction.

Q. And how long have you been in construction

?

A. I've been with the company I'm with now for

15 years.
Q. As part of your job are you gone for

extended periods of time or anything like that?

AL No.

Q. So you're home pretty much every night?

A. I'm hbme every night.

Q. -+ Okay. Mr.‘Beavers, I'll kind of get right
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to the chase here. Your farm place there is pretty

close to a creek; is that correct?

Al Very close.

Q. Okay. How close?

A. Erobably within a hundred yards.

Q. All right.. And that is-- What do you céil

that creek?

A. I call that my creek.

Q. | Okay. And here we've beeﬁ calling it the
unnamed tributary this whole time. Sco it's your
creek. But at any rate, you've been around

there--well, you'wve lived at that location within a
hundred yards of what we've been calling for purposes
of this proceeding—wi think we'll prébably continue
to do that so our record is clear--the unnamed

tributary of Elliot Creek?

Al Yes.
0. What do you-—- Well, do you fish?
A, bh{ yes. My boy and I both fish.
Q. Whaﬁ’s your boy's name?
AL Michael.
Q; How old is Michael?
| A. | He qutrturned 18.
Q. So for the four years before he was born and

then the 18 years since he's been around, you and he
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have been fishing?
A, Yes.,
MR. RYAN: Objection, leading.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: ‘That's okay
to ask that as a pteliminary matter. It's

not--that's well within the exceptions to leading

guestions.

Go ahead;

MR, McATLEE: I have to get out of
cross~examination mode.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: That'é an
appropriate guestion.

MR. McAFEE: Okay.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUEGE: There aré.a
number of questions that are leading that.are
Qermissible. Go ahead.

MR. McAFEE: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. How does your activity-- How do your
activities with the creek relate to your fishing?

A! W@ll, my boy and I for the last 15, 16
years, we get our own bait as far as Minnows, Chubs,
Craﬁdads,.and we get most of them right out of that
crick.

0. How many are there?
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A, We have pretty good luck.

Q. Okay. How do you get them out of that
creek?

A, Minnow trap.

Q. Briefiy, could you tell the Court what a

Minnow trap is.

A. Basically a Minnow trap is a round wire

basket about this big around {indicating), maybe a

foot long, or so, that's got a funnel on each end.

And the Minnows swim into it, and the funnel is small

at the end so they can't get back out.

Q. What kind of Minnows do you trap?

A. Fatheads, Shiners, Big Chubs, you know.
There'squité a variety in there.

Q. And how do you recognizé the differences?

A! Just by doing it fbr years. When I was a
kid, I did cricks over in another part of town, and I
scld them to bait shops and stuff. And that's
basically how i learned the difference.

Q. During your 22 years of doiﬁg this have you
ever noticed a problém in this creek with finding
Minnows, et cetera?

A. The only time I ever fouﬁd a problem; and we
found out later as we walked further down the creek,

is there was some-~-I call them spillways where
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somebody had put rock or something in there. And if
ﬁhe water is too low, then the Minnows can't get up
past it. Otherwise, we've never had a problem
getting Chubs and Minnows éut of theréi

‘Q. Have you noticed a problem with thosé
spillways this vear? |

A. Not so much this year because it's my boy's
senior year, and we haven't ;eally spent a lot of

time in the crick this vyear.

0. But have you in years past?
A, Akbsolutely.
Q.  And again, what do those--are they

obstructions?

A. Obstructions. I call them spilliways. If
stebody héd dumped--a lot of it's busted concrete or
rocks. I don't know if they put them in there to
keep it from washiﬁg out, or what. But sometimes

it's a downed tree limb that forms kind of a dam.

Unless the water is real high, the Minnows and-Chubs‘

can't get past 1t. - They can't‘jump above it.
Q. Okay. And these would be located to the
west of your property or which direction?

Al They're west of me.

Q. You mentioned finding Shinexrs?
A. Uh~huh.
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Q. I'm not a fisherman. Help me out here.
A.  Well, I call them Shiners. They're just the

real bright silvery color.

Q. Do some people refer toe them as.Sand Shiners
maybe?

A. I'm not sure.

Q. Do you find White Suckeré?

AL Yes.

0. What about.équatic tife, I'l]l use that term,

other than fish?

A. Well, on my plaée,there I have a breome field
right next to the crick, and I use it for hay, I mow
it-and bale it. And just this year alone when I was
mowing the frogs were unbelieVable. Theré's a lot of

frogs down there, and we use them for Catfish bait,

too.
0. Do you ever find Crawdads?'
A. _ I‘have.
Q. And have you had other wildlife show up on

that‘creek?

A Oh, veah.

Q. ~ What have you had show up, in my words?
A, As of right now, just east of me across the

Franklin Avenue~—jﬁst on -the other side of Frénklin

off that little tree grove there there's a family of
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beaver in there building a dam. And they've got it
backed up prétty good now where I'm sure they're

going to have to open it up or it won't be good for

the road.

Q. When you say "they," who are you referriﬁg
to?

A. I think the county does it. The beaver were

,in there a couple years ago, and they backed that

| water up to where it comes right up to the gravel

road. And if the road gets too wet, they'll come

down with a machine and reach over the bridge and

-pick the dam out. And my bey and I just were out

there last night with a spotlight watching the

beavers work.

Q. Do you see raccoons?

A.  0Oh, yeah, way too manj raccoons. I don't
like them.

Q. And along the creek?

A. Yeah. We've seen th@m in the'crick, and,

actually, a lot of times I've got to trap them. I
use live traps. And then I relocate them because we

raise exotic birds, and coons and birds don't get

along.
0. What do raccoons eat besides your birds?
AL Eggs, fish, Crawdadé.
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Q. All right. Do you or your son Fish?
AL Yes.
Q. I think you've téstified.to that. Do you or

‘your son fish in Elliot Creek?

A. I've never fished‘there, but my boy does.
Q. And has he caught any £ish?

MR. RYAN: Objectiqn,lﬁearsay. His son is
not here fdﬁ me to cross-examine him. rThis is the
exact séme testimony that he objected fo earlier with
one of our witnesses-testifying about what another
perscon has said cor done.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LRWVJUDGE: Okay.
Réphrase the question.

BY MEK. MCAFEE:
Q. Have jou ever seen your-- Or has.your son
ever toid.you he has caught any fish in Elliot Creek?

MR. RYAN: Objection, hearsay. This witness
has testified he's never personally fished Elliét
Creek. He's asking what another person's experiénce
is in that creek, and that person is ﬁot here to
testify today. | | |

THE ADMINiSTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: The problem
is that, first of all, as I've noted, h@arsay is

generally admissible. But I noted that even there

i
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 But it seems to me like you could ask,

counsel-~- There is a way around this. You could ask
him if he observed his son come home with fish. Then

again there is the problem of saying, "Where did you
get the fish from?" |

Make an éttémpt,‘but I don't think this is
such a big deal. So I'm probably gbing to sustain
the objeqtion. .If you want to make one other run at
it, you can.

MR. McAFEE: é'il take.another shot.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Why not.
BY MR.‘MCAFEE: |

Q. Has:your son ever broﬁght any fish home that

he has caught in Elliot Creek?

A. Yes, he has.

G. What was that fish?

A, They'wéré Catfish.

Q. Do you know‘whére your son caught thét

Catfish in Elliot Creek?

A Closer to the Town of Lawton.
Q. Which is about how far downstream from you?
A. I would say probably four-and-a-half miles.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let me just
ask you just for clarification of the record,

Mr. Beavers. By the way, because I got confused as
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the court reporter did, yéur name 1s the same
speliing as the creatures that are building a dam; 1is
that right?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: It's not
Beé#er, it's Beaveré?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

~ THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Jus£ for
clarification of the record, when you're looking at
this Complainant'szﬁxhibit 6, which is up on
édmething they call the light pro,'your property is
on the left side of this road that is called Franklin
Avenué;-is that right? |

THE WITNESS: Yes,

THE ADMINISTRATIVE.LAW JUDGE: And on this
exhibit—-in fact, along Franklin Avenue, at leasf on
this part of the exhibit, that's the only house on.
that road; right?

THE WITNESS: Right.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Between 110th
Avenue and 340th Street?

THE WITNESS: Yes, it is.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE; Thét's.the
only property there; right?

THE WITNESS: Yes.
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THE ADMINISTRATiVE LAW JUDGE: And just in
terms of location, it‘iooks to me likewwyo@ tell me--
if vou walked this, yoﬁ seem Lo be~-actually, your
property is about halfway between, maybé-eveﬂ a
little closer to the Lowell Vos feedlot as opposed to
where-this~—your creek, as you called it, meetls
Elliot Creek; is that fair? |

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I just wanted

'to make sure that anyone that lcocoks at the record can

absolutely orient themselves and not be confused as
to where Mr. Beavé:s lives.
Go ahead, counsel. Any‘other guestions?
MR. McAFEE: Yes, Your Honor. If itrwouid
be helpful for the record, I'could héve the witnéss
circle his house and make this a separate_exhibit.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I think it's
clear enough.- But it's not my call, it's your call.
MR. McAFEE: I understand.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: There's no

~other property between those two streets I mentioned.

MR. McAFEE: I'm trying to keep the number
of those type of exhibits to a minimum.
BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. Just a few more guestions, Mr. Beavers.
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Other than what you‘ve‘testified to, trapping
Minnows, et cetera, do you have any other activities
that lead you to be right by the creek on a regular
bésis?'

A. Well, like I said, the lower part I have
brome grass down there which I run for hay, so I rﬁn
my tractor up there along the creek guite often. And
my boy aﬁd I both hunt, so we travel that crick for
three months during hunting_seasoﬁ up and down. We
walk that crick when we're pheasanf hunﬁihg.

Q. During that time and whenever you're around.
the cieek, have you ever noticed a problem with any
manure or any'oth@r'contaminants in'the creek?

A, No, I haven't.

Q. Again, you've lived there for 22 years; is

that correct?

A. Twenty-two years, yes.

Q. Recently did anyone from DNR stop by your
‘place?

A. I had two gentlemen stop. They said they

were going to be running some tests on the crick,
wanted to know ;f they could set'up like a little pup
tent down in my bottom pééture where they could get
closer to the crick,.and I told them thét wasn't_a

problem. And I asked them when they thought they .
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were going to be thére, and they said twd, three
weeks. |

The only reason I asked is I was hoping to-
have the brome mowed and baled out of there. I
didn't want them driving over it because I use it for
hay; I didn't want them driving over it. ' But I told
thém if it wasn't mowed, go ahead and go down.thér@
anyway.

MR. RYAN: Your Honor, I object to tﬁis iine
of_queétioning. 'This witness appeared for the first
time in the supplemental prehearing exchange fiiled on
August 20 of this year, ‘and there is no mention hére
of any visits with DNR or discussions of that. We 
were put on no-notice.

I would say what's good for the goose is’
good for the gander here. We've been warned we
cannci go bevyond the.prehearing exchange, and we have
testimony Here clearly not disclosed in the
prehearing exchange that wés supplemented last month.

MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, I just learned of
this in talking to the witness.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE‘LAW JUDGE: I'm going ﬁo
go along with Mr. Ryan, and then he won't be able to
complaiﬁ either because 1 am applying the same

standard, the‘goose/gaﬁder analogy.
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I also want to alert you that it's 10
minutes before 5, and there has been no
cross-examination of Mr. Beavers. I don't mind
Mr. Beavers coming back tomorrow, but he might mind;
So you might bear that in mind.:

MR.'McAFEE: That was my iastquestion, Your
Honor.

THE ADMINESTRATiVE LAW JUDGE: Ckay.
Cross—examination. |

MR. RYAN: Yes, Your Honor, I'll be very
brief. I'm confident we can finish befor@‘S.

May I approach the witn@és, Your Honoxr?

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

‘BY MR. RYAN:

Q. Mr. Beavers, I'm Mr. Ryan. I'm with the
EPA. |

A. Okay.

. We're looking now at Complainant's Exhibit

6, which is up on the light pro right now,
Mr. Beavers. Can you see where my finger is
pointing?

A. Yes. ~

Q. I believe you testified that yoﬁ live

approximately here at the--where the unnamed
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tributary passes underneath Franklin Avenue. Is that
your house immediately to the left?

Al Yes, it is.

Q. And this line we see that proceeds up north
and east from your house towards Mr. Vos' feedlot,
that's.what we've Dbeen calling the unnaﬁed tributary.
I think you testified it's your creek.

A. Yeah.

Q. And then going down the opposite direction,
southeast from Franklin Road is What appears to be
another creek. Ts that ancther creek there? Is that
another ﬁnnamed tributary? |

A. Actually, what that is is there's some fresh
watef springs up in there, and that's basically whére‘
it starts is right there.

Q. Okay.

A. I wouldn't really call it a creek because

it's just more of a swamp-type deal.

Q. Is there flow coming out?
. Yes, there's some flow coming out of there.
Q. - So just for the record, this area that

appears to be from an aerial photo a water bddy
heading south and east from your house at Franklin
Road with what appears to be bushes or trees along

it--
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0. -—-that has flow in it. Is the confluence of

what we call the unnamed tributary and this other
water body, which for purboses of right'how we'll
call it the swamp, 1s the confluence right pretty
mucﬁ where your house 1is?. |

A.. Right.

0. Now, Mr. Beavers, you live--I believe you
said you've lived there for 22 years in this place;

is thdt correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And'jou're a.neighbor of Mr. Vos'?

A. Yes.

Q. You'know him pretty well?

A;  Yes.

Q.- Ckay. Would you say you're friends?

A. Ch, vyeah.

Q. How often do you trap Minndws?

A, Sust about‘every year.

Q. Every year ébout once a year?

A. Well, it's for several months during the
summer.

Q. Okay. So you trap them in the summer?

A, Yes,

Q. And how often would that be; once a month--
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Al Well~-~

Q. ~=0rn avérage?

A. Well, it's jﬁst about every weekend when
we're trapping them. If we've got traps out, we

check them every three days.

Q. That would be in the summer months only?
A, Yes.
Q. So in the winter months you're not looking

for.fish down there?

A. . No.

Q. You talked about the Catfish that your son
brought heme. When was that?

" A. That was two to three weeks prior~-just é
couple weeks ago.

Q. Okavy. That was from abéutlfour—and—a—half
milés_downstteam on Elliét Cfeek?

A fes. |

Q. = Has he eﬁer brought a fish home from that

part of Elliot Creek before, from that part of Elliot

Creek?

AL Before?

Q. Yeé.

Al 0Oh, yeah. There's actually some pretty good
fish in.there for as small as the creek is. It's

pretty good fish in there.
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Q. Is that down near Lawton?
A, Yes.
Q. ‘Now, the last thing yoﬁ were asked about was

manure or contaminants in the creek.
.A. Right.

C. Now, you said you work in the construction
business? |

B. Yes.

Q. And before.that T reca;l—~ I'm Sorxy, what
was your proféssion before construction?

A. I worked at John Morrell Meat Packing.

0. Okay. And you've never been a feédlot
operator?

A, No.

Q. So-.are you-- Do you have any tréining in
biology or natural resources?

A. No.

Q. "Have you ever-- You've never actually

tested the waters going by your house before?

A, All 1 ever tested waé my wéll.

Q. And the-- Would you say that you would know
what feedlot runoff necessarily would look like if
you saw 1it?

A. I would say so. I grew up on a farm. I've

lived on a farm my whole life. I worked hog
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confinement for two years.

0. I'm sorry, what?

A. Hog confinement. So I've been around it
pretty mﬁch my whole life; I'm pretty sure I think
I'd know.what it was.

Q. But in terms ofF— You testified_this is
what you saw right near your house? |

A. Right.

Q. Not wup the stream} the unnamed tributary
near Mr. Vos' facility?

A. No, I haven't been up there.

MR. RYAN: I have no further guestions, Your
Honor.

MR. McAFEE: .I have no further questions,
Your Honor; |

THE ADMENISTRATIVEVLAW JUDGE : Okavy. We're
going to let you go, and we're‘going to call the day
to an end. I just have to ask you, th@ugh, because
I'm curious, what kind of exotic birds do you raise
there?

THE WITNESS: Well, we've got--raise
pigeons, and we ralse quail, pheasant$ ahd a lot of--
like Bobwhites. Well, I raise them and we turn them
loose on the crick.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Thank you
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véry much. We're done with your‘testimony. You're
excused.

(Witness excused.)
THE AéMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: We're done
for the day, and we're off the record.

{Recess at 5 o'clock p.m., until 9:30 a.m.,

Friday, September 1%, 2008.)
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CERTIFICAT E‘

I, the undersigned, a Certified Shorthand
Reporter of the State of Iowa, do hereby certify that
I acted as the cfficial court reporter at. the. hearing
in the above—entiﬁied mattei at the tTime and place
indicated;

That I took in shorthand all of the
proceedings had at the said time and place and that
said shorthahd notes were reduced to typewriting
under my direction and superviéion, and thét the
fofegoing typewritten pages are a fuiz and complete.
tréﬁscript of the shorthand notes so taken.

Dated at Des Moines, Iowa, this 22nd day of

September, 2008.
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